
SCRUTINY : GOVERNANCE, 
PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS CHANGE AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES

12.00 pm FRIDAY, 8TH DECEMBER, 2017

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used 
for training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber 
and using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined 

above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Human Resources report for Scrutiny Committee 
To consider the attached report 1 - 10

CLOSED SESSION

Exempt

In order for the following to be considered in private, it is suggested that the 
public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph/s 14,15 under Part 
4 of Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

4. Transformation & Efficiency Programme - 
Customer Work-Stream 
To consider the attached report 11 - 140

RE-OPENED SESSION

5. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillor T Skinner (Chair)

Councillors: T Rogers, J Amos, B Carter, C Davies, 
D Jones, H R Jones, D Sammon, W R Smith and 
D Roberts

Co-optees:  A Harris 

Youth Forum Representative: K Sutton

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Human Resources report for Scrutiny Committee  
 

 
This report was deferred from the 5th September 2017 Scrutiny meeting 
 
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 In 2014 outcomes were judged as unsatisfactory, the HR Service overall was not 

considered value for money due to the proportion of HR officers per employee 
cohort. However, there was good practice within the service, such as Occupational 
Health and Safety performance.  To address the unsatisfactory performance a HR 
Review was instigated, following this the key issues for the service were identified. 
These fall under 4 themes: Culture and Leadership; Forward Planning and Work 
programming; Communication; and Training and Development.  

 
1.2. Following the Wales Audit Office (WAO) audit in March 2016 outcomes were judged 

as ‘Adequate’-with the summary in the report stating ‘The Council has made good 
progress in improving the services provided by its Human Resources (HR) function, 
but there remains scope to further develop arrangements for workforce planning and 
performance monitoring.’ 

 
1.3 The HR service continues to implement the recommendations using benchmarking 

and best practice from external stakeholders. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 The judgements and evaluations are noted and debated. 
 
2.2 That Scrutiny Committee notes the content of the report and progress made to date. 
 
2.3 That the Scrutiny Committee identifies any further information they would like to 

receive  
 

Date Written 29th August 2017 
Report Author Fran Donnelly 
Service Area Human Resources 
Committee Date 8th December 2017 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2.4 That the Scrutiny Committee identifies priorities which can be taken into account by 
Cabinet in developing budget proposals 

 
 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Members of Scrutiny have asked for this report to be presented to them. Scrutiny are 

asked to consider the report and establish if there are any further elements they 
would like to be considered as part of the project plans. Scrutiny is also asked to 
consider what key performance indications and evaluation it would like recorded 
from the Managers Academy and if there is any specific management data it would 
like to view. As the evaluation stages are being considered over the next number of 
months Members as stakeholders can play a key part in the process.  

 
 
4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 In March 2016 the Wales Audit Office (WAO) undertook a HR Review; they assessed 

how the Service was improving since the review in September 2014. 
 
 ‘The Council has made good progress in improving the services provided by its 

Human Resources (HR) function, bit there remains scope to further develop 
arrangements for workforce planning and performance monitoring’ 

 
 ‘The Council has strengthened the leadership of its HR function, is improving HR 

services and is getting better at communicating and engaging with staff and 
stakeholders’ 

 
 The Council has developed a range of plans and polices to manage its workforce 

more effectively but has more work to do to ensure that these are implemented 
consistently’ 

 
 ‘The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan is driving its approach to service 

transformation and workforce planning but succession planning would benefit from a 
more strategic approach’ 

 
 ‘The Council is developing its HR and workforce performance monitoring 

arrangements but these are not yet operating effectively’ 
 
4.2 The WAO made a number of proposals for improvement for the human resource 

service and function for the Council. These are:- 
 
 The Council roll out training for all managers on new HR policies and procedures, 

and implements the planned Managers’ Academy. 
 
 The Council develops a strategic overview of the workforce implications of its service 

change proposals to better identify opportunities for redeployment and retraining, 
and facilitate more ‘joined-up’ planning across service areas 

 
 The Council strengthens its mechanisms for recording and reporting performance 

against its key human resources and workforce indicators Page 2



5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 Unfortunately the Council was advised by RCT that they were no longer able to 

deliver the Managers Academy programme at the end of November 2016. Human 
Resources have since worked with the Procurement Department to procure a 
provider.  

 
Following a procurement process, Eliesha Training has been awarded the contract 
and delivery commenced on the 3rd July 2017. Evaluation on the delivery programme 
will be considered with the provider and reported to Council/Scrutiny. 

 
5.2 The Council has started to build in “Succession Planning”. An employee’s voluntary 

early retirement or redundancy must be supported by a business case setting out 
how the work will be undertaken if the employee leaves or what the impact will be if 
the work is no longer undertaken.  

 
All vacancies now go through a formal approval process prior to recruitment (with the 
Trade Unions and the Corporate Management Team). This allows for the strategic 
overview of vacancies within the authority and allows for a joined up approach 
between all service areas. All service areas are now aware of the vacancies within 
the Council. 
 
Vacancies and redeployment opportunities are advertised on the intranet and 
emailed to staff on the redeployment list. A weekly meeting is held with the Trade 
Unions to monitor redeployment within the Council. 

 
5.3 The Transformation Programme, the Corporate Management Team and the Trade 

Unions consider all council vacancies, with preference given to those on first and 
second tier redeployment and then internal candidates.   

 
There is a high degree of organisation-specific knowledge in some service areas and 
in business-critical roles.  Succession planning has helped with keeping talented 
individuals within the Council, individuals are made aware of vacancies via all staff 
emails and managers have the responsibility to disseminate the bulletins to those 
that are not on email.  The next area for consideration with succession planning is to 
utilise the apprenticeship programme to grow new talent and to upskill current 
employees.  

 
The HR department is currently in the process of developing a new role within the 
Council to focus solely on workforce development and succession planning. It is 
hoped that this position will be appointed into by September 2017. The workforce 
planning toolkit that has been co-produced with the WLGA (Welsh Local 
Government Association) and the WAO (Wales Audit Office) is nearing its readiness 
for publication. The WAO having tested the tool at Ceredigion are going to make 
some tweaks but the feedback has been positive. The Council is aware of other 
authorities who have used it and found it useful. There is a national ministerial group 
who are looking at workforce planning and mobility, which has included the 
development of the People Exchange Cymru jobs portal. The Group is developing 
guidance supported by the Public Service Staff Commission. Subject to some 
agreement from the trades unions the toolkit will be referenced as good practice to 
support public bodies undertake workforce planning. The role will then use the 
workforce planning tool that has been developed within the Council.  This should 

Page 3



then further embed succession planning and workforce development throughout the 
Council.   

 
5.4 Staff that are on first and second tier redeployment list consider the redeployment 

and internal vacancies within the Council. Any training required by the member of 
staff is then discussed with the staff member, trade union and the redeployment 
department.  

 
The Council then works with Working Skills for Adults to develop any core skills that 
may be required i.e. ICT skills. The Council also has links with Tydfil Training and 
The Collage Merthyr Tydfil to provide any bespoke training that may be required for 
the staff members. The retraining is facilitated by the redeploying department during 
the four week trial period for the staff member. Weekly meeting take place with the 
Trade Union to monitor all 4 week trails within the Council, minutes of the meetings 
are produced and circulated accordingly. 

 
5.5 Corporate Management Team and the Trade Unions established the importance of 

the authority’s management information and agreed to the creation of a new position 
in the HR department.  A management information strategy is currently being 
developed; this is due to be completed in October 2017. This will be an additional 
Strategy on a Page for the department and will be fully reportable to audit/scrutiny. 
All information will be held in Chris 21 and managers can access via HR21. 

 
5.6 A 100% return was achieved for council staff for the equalities and Welsh language 

data; this is now being rolled out to the leisure trust and schools. Equalities data: Out 
of 2,543 staff on CHRIS21 (schools and leisure trust staff for this) we have equalities 
data recorded for 2,007 i.e. 78.92%. Work will continue with the schools and leisure 
trust for this to reach 100%. The data has been forward to the Welsh Language 
Officer in order to comply with the Welsh Language Standards. 

 
5.7 The department has appointed into a new position of HR systems officer (June 

2017). This post was agreed by the Trade Unions and Corporate Management Team 
as budget growth, showing the importance of this area for the managers within the 
authority. This post will focus on the centralisation of all management information, 
report to CMT (Corporate Management Team)  and SLT (Senior Leadership Team), 
It will look at best practice across other authorities. It will then establish evaluation 
criteria and set up workshops with managers to establish benefit to the authority.  

 
5.8 Work on the single points of dependency as highlighted by Scrutiny members has 

not been undertaken by the authority in its entirety to date. Departments have 
themselves identified if there is a single point of dependency and highlighted it as 
part of their risk register. 

 
5.9 The Council takes part in the annual WLGA benchmarking exercise in relation to 

sickness absence data (see attached). 
 
 
6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 To be adequate or above in all areas of work undertaken by the department. 
 

Page 4



6.2 To provide managers with all data they require in order to manage their workforce 
effectively. 

 
6.3 To ensure that succession planning is fully embedded into the Council. 
 
6.4 To ensure that performance management and an appraisal process is fully 

embedded into the Council. 
 
7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 The HR department needs to work with our training provider to deliver the Managers 

Academy and evaluate the process effectively. The evaluation of the programme can 
then be used to roll the programme out to further team leaders. 

 
7.2 The HR department needs to update all staff structures for the authority to assist with 

the management of information and workforce development. 
 
7.3 As a result of levy now payable by the Council the department needs to implement 

an apprenticeship programme for our current staff and for new apprenticeships to 
assist with succession planning.  

 
7.5 The department needs to provide robust management information to all managers 

and supervisors within the Council. 
 
7.6 The department needs to work with service areas in relation to agency labour used 

within the Council to establish the levels used within service areas and if this is the 
most effective use of resources. 

 
7.7 The department needs to use the WLGA and WAO workforce development tool to 

establish the Councils strengths and weaknesses in relation to workforce planning 
and develop a strategy to implement any recommendations. 

 

 
8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 

8.1 The department assists other service areas to meet their Wellbeing Objectives and 
respective plans and strategies. 

 
FRAN DONNELLY 
HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
PAYROLL PENSIONS AND HEALTH AND 
SAFETY  

PORTFOLIO COUNCILLOR, 
COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 
WLGA Sickness returns 

 
 

WLGA returns HR department 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

None 

 

Page 5



  Local Government Performance 2016-17 

A bulletin produced by the Local Government      Page 23 

Data Unit ~ Wales 

Corporate Health 
 

Local authorities across Wales employ around 130 thousand people. 

 

During 2016-17, an average of 10.3 days/shifts per full time employee were 

lost due to sickness. This ranged from 5.5 days in Merthyr Tydfil to 12.5 

days in Blaenau Gwent. 

 

 

 
  

Page 6



 

P
age 7



 

P
age 8



 

 

 

 

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 61

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 93

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 111

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 129

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14, 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Human Resources report for Scrutiny Committee
	To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen
	Human Resources report for Scrutiny Committee
	1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT
	2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)
	3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND
	3.1 Members of Scrutiny have asked for this report to be presented to them. Scrutiny are asked to consider the report and establish if there are any further elements they would like to be considered as part of the project plans. Scrutiny is also asked...
	4.0 WHERE WE WERE
	5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW
	6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE
	7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT
	8.1 The department assists other service areas to meet their Wellbeing Objectives and respective plans and strategies.


	4 Transformation & Efficiency Programme - Customer Work-Stream
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7


